
Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope Valleys since 1974.  

 
 North Los Angeles County Regional Center  

Main 818-778-1900 • Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 | www.nlacrc.org 
 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

Date: November 15, 2024 

To: Executive Committee: 
Ana Quiles, Sharmila Brunjes, Leticia Garcia, Brian Gatus, Rocio Sigala, 
Alma Rodriguez, Andrew Ramirez 

From: Kimberly Visokey, Executive Administrative Assistant 
 

Re: Information for the next Executive Committee meeting on 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 at 6:30 pm 

 

Attached is information for the next Executive Committee meeting. Please review 
this information prior to the meeting. 

 
The meeting will be held remotely via Zoom. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83476480256?pwd=BtvpmibD2KjLYiJwbIiC32UvUrT9nR.1 

 

Meeting ID: 834 7648 0256 
Passcode: 663916 

 

If you have any questions, or if you are unable to attend the meeting, please send 
us an email to boardsupport@nlacrc.org. 

 
Thank you! 

 
c: Angela Pao-Johnson, Executive Director, Evelyn McOmie, Deputy Director, Vini 
Montague, Chief Financial Officer, Betsy Monahan, Human Resources Director, 
Donna Rentsch, Consumer Services Director, Silvia Renteria-Haro, Director of 
Client Services 

Attachments 

1

http://www.nlacrc.org/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83476480256?pwd=BtvpmibD2KjLYiJwbIiC32UvUrT9nR.1
mailto:boardsupport@nlacrc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
      Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311   | www.nlacrc.org 
      

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, November 21, 2024, at 6:30 pm - Via Zoom 

~AGENDA ~ 

I. Call to Order and Introductions (1 min) 
 

II. Committee Member Attendance/Quorum (1 min) 
  

III. Agenda (Page 2) 
 

IV. Public Input – Agenda Items (3 min per person / 3 attendees max) 
  

V. Consent Items (2 min) 

A. Approval of Minutes from the October 24, 2024, Meeting (Page 3) 
 

VI. Action Items  

A. New Board Member Onboarding Plan (10 min)  

B. Board Training Plan (3 min) 

C. Annual Board Event for FY 24-25 Workgroup – Ana Quiles (2 min) 

D. Annual Board Retreat for FY 24-25 Workgroup – Ana Quiles (2 min) 

E. Parliamentarian Training – Ana Quiles (5 min) 
 

VII. Committee Business  

A. Update on NLACRC Strategic Plan – Vivian Seda / Angela Pao-Johnson (1 min)  

B. Review of Whistleblower Policy – Betsy Monahan (Deferred) 

C. Review the Purchase of Service Annual Report FY 2023-2024 – Vini Montague (3 min) (Page 8) 

D. Review of the Special Contract Language (SCL) Deliverables Matrix – Angela Pao-Johnson (5 min) 

E. Recording of Meetings – Megan Mitchell (3 min) 
 

IX. Center Operations- Angela Pao-Johnson (5 min) (Page 50) 
 

XI. Board Meeting Agenda Items (1 min) 
 

XII. Announcements / Public Input/Information Items (3 min) 

A. Next meeting Thursday, January 23, 2025, at 6:00 PM  

B. Committee Attendance (Page 53) 
 

XIII. Adjournment 
 

XIV. Review of Committee Action Log Items (Item Owner and Due Date) 
 

Please refer to NLACRC’s website for the Calendar of Events, which includes a link for the Family Focus Resource 
Center, for information regarding more support groups, training opportunities, dates, times, and links – 
www.nlacrc.org  

http://www.nlacrc.org/
http://www.nlacrc.org/


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING, NLACRC, OCTOBER 24, 2024 P. 1 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Minutes Of The Executive Committee Meeting 

October 24, 2024, 6:00 P.M.  
 

MEMBERS: 
 
Ana Quiles, Brian Gatus, Rocio Sigala, Andrew Ramirez, Leticia Garcia, Sharmila Brunjes  

 
STAFF: Angela Pao-Johnson, Evelyn McOmie, Vini Montague, Betsy Monahan, Megan 
Mitchell, Arezo Abedi, Kimberly Visokey    
 
GUESTS: Aaron Abramowitz - Legal Counsel, Mark Wolfe - DDS Tech Advisor, Tresa Oliveri 
- DDS Tech Advisor, Xochitl Gonzalez – DDS, Carmen Albanese - Recording Secretary, 
Minutes Solutions Inc 
 
ABSENT: Alma Rodriguez 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
There being a quorum present, and adequate and proper notice of the meeting having been 
given, the meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m.  
 

2. COMMITTEE MEMBER ATTENDANCE 
 
Members were asked to identify themselves when speaking or making a motion. 
 

3. AGENDA 
 
On a motion duly made and seconded, it was resolved to approve the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried. 
 

4. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

M/S/C (Brian Gatus / Lety Garcia) to approve the minutes of the Executive Committee meeting 

held on August 22, 2024, and September 26, 2024. 

 
 
5. PUBLIC INPUT – AGENDA ITEMS 

 
There was no public input regarding the agenda items.  
 

6. ACTION ITEMS 
 
6.1 FY 2024/2025 Board Priorities 

M/S/C (Brian Gatus / Lety Garcia) to approve the draft Board priorities for the FY 2024/2025, 

as amended.  

 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will submit the revised Board priorities document to the 
Board of Trustees for review and approval. 

 
6.2 FY 2024/2025 Critical Calendar 

 

M/S/C (Lety Garcia / Andrew Ramirez) to approve the FY 2024/2025 Board critical calendar, 

as presented.  

3



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING, NLACRC, OCTOBER 24, 2024 P. 2 

 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will add the legislative advocacy training completed in 
October 2024, to the FY 2024/2025 Board critical calendar. 
 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will create a FY 2025/2025 Board critical calendar and 
include legislative advocacy training in October, 2025, for review and approval. 

 
6.3 Contract Approval – with Conflict of Interest 

 

M/S/C (Andrew Ramirez / Sharmila Brunjes) to approve the following vendorization contracts 

for a five-year term effective November 1, 2024, through October 31, 2029: 

• 24 Hour Caregivers, Inc., at a total cost of $1,491,450.75 

• Like Family LLC, at a total cost of $1,491,450.75 

• Wood Quality Care, at a total cost of $1,491,450.75 

• Bella Vida Home Care LLC, for in-home respite services, at a total cost of 
$1,491,450.75, 

• Bella Vida Home Care LLC, for personal assistance services, at a total cost of 
$1,491,450.75 

 
Rocia Sigala abstained due to a conflict of interest. 
 

M/S (Andrew Ramirez / Sharmila Brunjes) to approve the contract provided by Maxim 

Healthcare Services for vendorization for a five-year term effective November 1, 2024, through 

October 31, 2029, at a total cost of $24,437,957.53.  

 

Brian Gatus and Leticia Garcia opposed the motion. Rocia Sigala abstained due to a conflict 
of interest. 

 

The motion did not carry.  

 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will inform the Board of Trustees about the vendor 
contract that was not approved for hire. 

 
6.4 Contract Approval – New Vendorizations  

 

M/S/C (Andrew Ramirez / Sharmila Brunjes) to approve the following new vendorization 

contracts for a five-year term effective November 1, 2024, through October 31, 2029: 

• Yes I Can Unity Through Music & Education, Inc. at a total cost of $2,782,080 

• Sekhon, Sharn, Psy.D, at a total cost of $1,242,000 

• Dr. Beliz, at a total cost of $3,312,000 

• Build Rehabilitation Industries, at a total cost of $5,777,032 

• Road to Independence, Inc., at a total cost of $910,725 

• A’Villa Inc., at a total cost of $956,155.20 

• Achieve Speech Associates Inc., at a total cost of $3,039,868.80 

• Gersovich, Sandra Vivan, at a total cost of $763,929 

• Maxima Therapy and Speech Clinic, at a total cost of $37,293,060 

• Roya Darabit Parsa dba Dreamy Speech Therapy, at a total cost of $298,464 

• Sierra Kiley Rojas dba All Access Communication Speech Therapy, at a total 
cost of $298,464 

• Willow Tree Therapy, at a total cost of $763,929 

• Assurance Family Services, at a total cost of $461,711.30 

• Creative Minds, at a total cost of $649,350 

• Illuminate Minds, at a total cost of $710,400 

4



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING, NLACRC, OCTOBER 24, 2024 P. 3 

• Pure Autism Counseling Centre, Inc., at a total cost of $16,876,032 

• Pure Autism Counseling Centre, Inc., at a total cost of $19,344,000 

• Pediatric Therapy Care: Speech Language Pathology Corporation, at a total cost 
of $798,235.75 

• SG Speech Therapy Inc., at a total cost of $798,235.75 

• Access One Homecare Services Inc., at a total cost of $3,297,888 

• Strategic Concepts ILS, Inc., at a total cost of $999,360 
 

6.5 Usual and Customary Rates 
 

M/S/C (Sharmila Brunjes / Brian Gatus) to approve the usual and customary rates for the 

following: 

• Dr. Lisa Sandler, Psy.D, at a total cost of $9,504,000 

• Gittelson Psychological Services Inc., at a total cost of $3,330,000 

• Keolis Transit Services, LLC, at a total cost of $129,066,659.77 
 

6.6 Approval of Delegated Conservatorship Policy 
 
M/S/C (Andrew Ramirez / Leticia Garcia) to approve the delegated conservatorship policy, as 
presented.  
 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will submit the delegated conservatorship policy to the 
Board of Trustees for review and approval. Calendar Year 2025 Training Plan 
 

6.7 Approval of the CY 2025 Board Training Plan 
 
M/S/C (Leticia Garcia / Brian Gatus) to approve the calendar year 2025 training plan, as 
amended.  
 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will revise the calendar year 2025 training plan by 
rescheduling the legislative advocacy training (GCRC meeting) to October, 2025, and will 
submit the updated plan to the Board of Trustees and Department of Developmental Services 
for approval.  
 
Once approved, the Executive Committee will upload the training calendar to the website by 
the December 15, 2024, deadline. 

 
7. COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

 
7.1 Review of Whistleblower Policy 

 
M/S/C (Leticia Garcia / Andrew Ramirez) to approve the whistleblower policy, as amended.  
 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will revise Item 5.6 of the whistleblower policy to include 
that the Regional Center will provide monthly whistleblower report logs to the Department of 
Developmental Services and the Executive Committee.  

 
7.2 Review of Purchase of Service Annual Report 2023/2024 

 
This item was deferred to a future meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

5



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING, NLACRC, OCTOBER 24, 2024 P. 4 

7.3 Annual Board Dinner and Retreat 2024/2025 
 

M/S/C (Leticia Garcia / Andrew Ramirez) to host the Board dinner at a hotel on a Friday in 
May, 2025, and the Board retreat at the Santa Clarita office on the following Saturday of May, 
2025, final expense pending. 
 
ACTION – The Executive Committee will schedule working groups for the Board dinner and 
Board retreat events, and compile venue quotes to present at next Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
The Board proposed changing the name of the Board dinner event to better reflect the purpose 
of the gathering. 
 

7.4 Review of Special Contract Language (SCL) Deliverables Matrix 
 
ACTION – Betsy Monahan and Angela Pao-Johnson will confirm the executive director 
governing authority policies are already outlined in the employment contract and evaluation 
policy.  
 
Angela Pao-Johnson presented the SCL deliverables matrix.  
 
The matrix deadlines include the nominating committee’s submission of a recruitment plan by 
November 13, 2024. Additionally, the Executive Committee must submit policies and 
procedures regarding board/executive director relationships. The Executive Committee 
reported that the policy governing this relationship should be outlined in Angela Pao-Johnson’s 
employment contract, and that an evaluation policy is already in place. 
 

7.5 Recording of Meetings 
 
ACTION – Angela Pao-Johnson, Megan Mitchell, and Aaron Abramowitz will begin 
researching and drafting a policy on the recording of meetings.  
 

7.6 Spanish Translation Expectations and Confirmation 
 
It was reported that for virtual Board of Trustee meetings, there are four interpreters: two 
attending virtually and two in person. The in-person interpreters are responsible for translating 
from English to Spanish for attendees. However, they have not been able to interpret from 
Spanish to English when an attendee wishes to provide input. The Executive Committee is 
working with the interpreter vendor to address this concern and prevent issues in future 
meetings. 
 
The Executive Committee agreed to introduce the interpreter at the beginning of all future 
Board of Trustee meetings. 
 

8. CENTER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Angela Pao-Johnson presented the center operations report.  
 

9. BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The actions items from this meeting are as follows: 
 

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will submit the revised the Board priorities 
document to the Board of Trustees for review and approval.  

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will add the legislative advocacy training 
completed in October, 2024, to the FY 2024/2025 Board critical calendar.  

6



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING, NLACRC, OCTOBER 24, 2024 P. 5 

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will create a FY 2025/2025 Board critical 
calendar and include legislative advocacy training in October, 2025, for review and 
approval.  

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will inform the Board of Trustees about the 
vendor contract that was not approved for hire.  

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will submit the delegated conservatorship policy 
to the Board of Trustees for review and approval.  

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will revise the calendar year 2025 training plan 
by rescheduling the legislative advocacy training (GCRC meeting) to October, 2025 
and will submit the updated plan to the Board of Trustees and Department of 
Developmental Services for approval.  

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will revise Item 5.6 of the whistleblower policy to 
include that the Regional Center will provide monthly whistleblower report logs to the 
Department of Developmental Services and the Executive Committee.  

• ACTION – The Executive Committee will schedule working groups for the Board dinner 
and Board retreat events, and compile venue quotes to present at next Board of 
Trustees meeting.  

• ACTION – Betsy Monahan and Angela Pao-Johnson will confirm the executive director 
governing authority policies are already outlined in the employment contract and 
evaluation policy.  

• ACTION – Angela Pao-Johnson, Megan Mitchell, and Aaron Abramowitz will begin 
researching and drafting a policy on the recording of meetings. NEXT MEETING  

 
The date of the next Board meeting is scheduled on November 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

 
DISCLAIMER 
 
The above document should be used as a summary of the motions passed and issues 
discussed at the meeting. This document shall not be considered a verbatim copy of every 
word spoken at the meeting.   
 
 
            
Director     Director 
 
            
Date      Date 
 

 

7



1

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

PROPER MEETING COMMUNITY INCLUSION
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5 (g), please note the following:  

 Two (2) public meetings were held: 
•  one on Tuesday, March 26, 2024 at 10:00 am and one on Wednesday, March 27, 2024 at 6:00 pm.

 In an effort to accommodate community participation, these meetings were conducted virtually via Zoom. 

PROPER MEETING NOTIFICATION
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5 (g), please note the following:  

 The Department was informed at least 30-days prior to both meetings via OCO Email.
 Notices for the meetings were posted on NLACRC’s website 30-days prior to each meeting.
 Individual community members impacted by disparities and barriers to equitable access to services and 

supports were informed with 3 weeks’ notice. 
 The following outreach efforts were utilized to inform community members impacted by disparities and 

barriers to equitable access to services and supports of the meetings: 
• Newsletter/Ebalst
• POS meeting specific email
• Public meeting
• Community partners
• Website event page and calendar

NLACRC’S PURCHASE OF SERVICE (POS) ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

8



2

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY APPROPRIATE
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5 (g), please note the following:  

 The following languages were offered during the meetings: 
• English
• Spanish
• Armenian
• Tagalog
• Farsi

 The meetings included the following: 
• Meetings were held in several languages.
• Closed captioning was provided.
• Materials were provided in several languages:

• Presentation:  English & Spanish
• Flyers:  English, Spanish, Armenian, Farsi, & Tagalog

• Information was presented in plain language.
 The cultural and linguistic needs of the communities were considered as follows:

• Based on the center’s demographics, it was determined to have interpretation available for the top 
5 languages for our communities: (Spanish, Armenian, Farsi, Tagalog, and English).  The public 
meetings also had small breakout rooms with interpretations in the preferred language mentioned 
above.  As our Spanish speaking population is the largest, we had 2 breakout rooms to ensure space 
capacity.  

9



3

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

ACTIONS TO IMPROVE PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AND PARTICIPATION
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5(i)(1)(A), please note the following:  

 The goal or purpose of the meeting was communicated through the presentation and through electronic 
mailing and advertisement on NLACRC’s website. 

 The following methods were used to provide an environment that allowed attendees to feel comfortable 
and to interact with each other:  

• Allowed for small group conversations.
• Introduced staff in attendance.
• Allowed attendees to introduce themselves.
• Provided chat rooms, via the Zoom chat function.
• Chat feature was enabled. 
• Opportunity for public comment.
• Provided opportunities to ask questions. 
• Offered additional surveys in different languages, which were made available for 2 weeks before 

and after the public meetings. 
 Based on attendance, the following was observed:

• Attendees engaged in public comment.
• Diverse perspectives were shared by attendees. 
• Attendees requested additional explanation/clarification on the information shared. 

 Between 100-200 individuals from the public attended the meetings.

10



4

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

ACTIONS TO IMPROVE PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AND PARTICIPATION (continued)
 The following efforts were taken by NLACRC to improve public attendance and participation:  

• Collaborated with community partners by requesting that community-based members that attend 
the Disparity Committee disseminate the information to increase attendance.

• Offered focus groups. 
• Offered meetings in multiple languages.
• Outreach through group meetings.
• Outreach via flyers/public service announcements/social media.
• Provided translated materials.
• Offered meetings virtually.
• Offered meetings during non-business hours.

 The following were attendees at the meetings:  
• Self-advocates.
• Parents/family members.
• Regional center staff.
• Board members.
• Community advocates.
• Community-based organizations.
• Department staff.
• Service providers.

 The following partner agencies, community partners, and community-based organizations participated in 
the meetings:  

• ICC, DOR, SCDD, FFRC, LVAC, OCHRA, CHLA,  AND 24hr Homecare.

11



5

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

COPIES OF MINUTES AND ATTENDEE COMMENTS
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5 (i)(1)(B), please note the following:  

 Screenshots and links to presentation materials, copies of attendee comments (minutes), survey questions and 
responses are attached as Exhibit A.

 The following themes reflect what attendees expressed as important, changes and barriers faced:
 

12



6

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

IDENTIFIED DISPARITIES IN THE POS DATA 
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5(i)(1)(C), please note the following:  

 NLACRC report data about number of instances when written copies of individual program plans (IPP) were 
not provided at the request of consumers or their legal representatives more than 45 days for threshold 
languages and 60 days for non-threshold languages after request was made.

 The types of disparities that were identified and discussed are attached as Exhibit B.  

REGIONAL CENTER’S RECOMMENDATIONS AND PLANS TO PROMOTE EQUITY AND REDUCE DISPARITIES 
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5(i)(1)(C), please note the following:  

 The following other venues were utilized, in additional t o holding the POS annual meeting, to gather 
information to develop the NLACRC’s recommendations and plan to promote equity and reduce 
disparities: 

• Other regional center meetings
• Feedback requested from support groups
• Recommendations from focus groups
• Surveys

 NLACRC’s prior year’s recommendations and plan have been implemented as follows: 
• See attached Exhibit C

REPORTS POSTED ON INTERNET WEBSITES
 In compliance with W&I Code section 4519.5(c)(1)(B), please note the following:  

 NLACRC posted its data as provided by the Department on December 19, 2023.
 NLACRC posted the report developed from public meetings and all its required elements pursuant to W&I 

Code section 4519.5(i)(C)(1) on NLACRC’s website.  

13



7

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

Exhibit A

Links to presentations: English POS (Purchase of Service) Presentation: PDF Español Presentación POS (Compra de Servicios): PDF

14

https://www.nlacrc.org/home/showpublisheddocument/16449/638470559453500000
https://www.nlacrc.org/home/showpublisheddocument/16451/638470559458970000


8

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

15



9

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

16



10

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

17



11

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23
Attendee comments (minutes):
POS – Notes – Meeting English Room 1 – March 26, 2024

18



12

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

19



13

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23
POS – Notes – Meeting English Room 2 – March 26, 2024

20



14

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

21



15

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

22



16

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

23



17

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

24



18

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

25



19

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

26



20

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

27



21

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

28



22

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

29



23

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

30



24

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

31



25

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

32



26

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

33



27

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23
Responses to survey questions in English and Tagalog (no Spanish or Armenian responses were received):

34



28

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

35



29

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

Response #1:  When RC started, I asked for speech therapy for 5 years.  Since I had a new worker every year, I never got feedback from 
anyone, so I gave up asking.  Then when he was to move to a new program, I would search & tell RC which one I wanted, we did not 
agree & they finally gave in.  Long journey.  I hope RC has improved.  He now lives at ARC with no $ help from RC. Please let me know if 
you would like any more info, I know I could help.

Response #2:  I Don't Even Know If Any Service Im Supposed To Get Is Denied Or Not Or Even If I Can Have Them All Or Not!  Im 
Completely In The Dark On This issue And Do Not Know anything about It at all Nor Am i Even Interested!  End Of Discussion!!!!! 

36



30

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

37



31

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

38



32

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

39



33

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

*In accordance with DDS Data De-Identification Guidelines, counts of one through ten have been suppressed.
*In accordance with DDS Data De-Identification Guidelines, complementary cells have been suppressed.
**Other housing types may include Acute General Hospital, CTF, Developmental Center, Rehab Centers, Sub-Acute, Homeless, Psychiatric Treatment Facility.

Ethnicity or Race 

Hispanic 17,871 47.75%

White 9,843 26.30%

Other/Multi 
Cultural

3,882 10.37%

Black/African 
American

3,535 9.45%

Asian 2,234 5.97%

American Indian 
or Alaska Native

38 0.10%

Native Hawaiian 
or Pacific 
Islander

20 0.05%

Total: 37,423

Primary Language

English 28,711 77%

Spanish 7,912 21%

All Other 
Languages

746 2%

*Vietnamese

*Cantonese / 
Mandarin

Language Representation

English 24,763

Spanish 7,054

Armenian 232

Farsi 113

Tagalog 62

Russian 60

Vietnamese 44

Korean 37

Arabic 29

ASL 29

Residence Type

Family Home: 32,540

Independent or 
Supported Living

1,576

Foster Home 1,330
Community Care 
Facility/Group 
Home

1,150

ICF 
Facility/Skilled 
Nursing Facility

620

**Other 207

Diagnosis

Epilepsy: 249 1%

Cerebral    
Palsy:

608 1%

Category 5: 1,457 4%

Other: 9,082 24%
Intellectual
Disability:

9,277 25%

Autism: 16,750 45%

Total: 37,423

Age

Birth to Age 
2: 

7,592 20%

Age 3-21 
Years:

19,252 52%

Age 22 and 
Older:

10,579 28%

Total: 37,423

Exhibit B

The types of disparities that were identified and discussed: 

40



34

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

Exhibit C

NLACRC’s prior year’s recommendations and plan have been implemented as follows: 

Inclusion, Equity, and Diversity

The Inclusion, Equity and Diversity Board Policy was developed, and the language was added to our HR documentation. 

Bridging Voices conducted training for all staff in 2023 and currently for 2024, there are four (4) additional cohorts that include Cultural 
Proficiency topics. A Train the Trainer group has also been created for ongoing, year-round training for staff as they are onboarded. 
Additionally, through the growth of the Diversity, Equity, Inclusion & Belonging Unit (DEIB), a group of Outreach Language Specialists 
have been providing support and consultations to the families from different demographic groups, including Armenian, Farsi, Tagalog, 
and Spanish speaking communities. 

Staff and Community Trainings, 
Engagement, and Events

In response to the Department's proposed performance measure for consumers' service plan to demonstrate person centered 
standards, NLACRC has developed the Person Centered IPP Guide and IFSP Guide as easy-to-use information to assist staff with 
understanding and developing person centered IPPs. Additionally, we have offered plain language training to improve our written 
communications with our communities. 

In addition to the New Parent Orientation, NLACRC hosts Community Learning Forums; Town Halls; Different Thinkers, Different 
Learners; Cafecito; Armenian, Farsi, Tagalog, and Black/African American Support Groups. 

Due to our continuous efforts to provide information to the community and individual that we serve, the presentations previously 
mentioned have continued and have evolved as part of the resources for families. 

In addition, we have developed an insert of service definitions translated in Armenian, Farsi, Tagalog, and Spanish, which provide 
information on each of the services available based on age groups to assist families. During IPP planning.

Language Access
In addition to facilitating Spanish translation during our public meetings, NLACRC has added translation in Armenian, Farsi and Tagalog 
and we continue to have available IPPs translated in family's preferred language.

NLACRC's Guide for Consumers and 
Families

We translated the Guide for Consumers and Families into Armenian, Tagalog, and Farsi and this publication is available for distribution 
during outreach events.

Common Services Brochure
We translated the Common Services Brochure into Armenian, Tagalog, and Farsi and this publication is available for distribution during 
outreach events.

41



35

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

Local Grassroots Outreach
The DEIB team has established partnerships and connections with multiple community-based organizations to offer training and 
technical assistance, informational sessions and consultations regarding regional center systems and services.

Parent and Family Support 
Specialists

Parent and family Support Specialists continue to assist families through consultations, trainings, and presentations to ensure 
understanding about the regional center systems and services. 

We have an additional two (2) Spanish speaking outreach language specialists to assist Spanish speaking families during outreach 
events and community collaboratives.

NLACRC Website/Email/Social 
Media

The website is going through revamping to provide an easier way to access information, resources, and the newsletter. The new 
version will be launched in September 2024. 

NLACRC Disparity Committee and 
Partnerships with Community-

Based Organizations (CBOs)

The NLACRC Disparity Committee is comprised of NLACRC staff, board members and community partners, as well as all stakeholders in 
our disparity-related efforts. Our community partners on the committee include:   

• Family Focus Resource Center (FFRC) 
• Integrated Community Collaborative (ICC) 
• State Council on Developmental Disabilities (SCDD)
• PathPoint 
• Mixteco Indígena Community Organizing Project (MICOP), 
• So'oh-Shinálí Sister Project, 
• USC in collaboration with Children's Hospital L.A.
• UCLA's Tarjan Center
• LALGBTQ Center

Through monthly meetings, the committee has been involved in discussions to improve POS expenditure, survey development for POS 
presentation, data analysis on disparity. The efforts of this committee continue to be an improvement of services, closing the gap on 
disparity and increase of informational opportunities for families and individuals we serve. 

Caseload Reduction

Recruitment, retention, and re-engagement have been the three (3) focus areas from the organization to hire staff for the case 
management department to ensure a manageable caseload ratio.  Additionally, we will be conducting an employee survey to 
determine activities recommended by staff for engagement and morale improvement. 

42



36

NLACRC’S POS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23

Enhanced Service Coordination
The Enhanced Service Coordination Unit continues to provide enhanced case management services to a total of 240 consumers and 
their families who have utilized zero to under $1,999 of purchase of services, per Fiscal Year, through the regional center.

On-Duty (OD) Specialist Call Center
Due to the growth of our caseloads and by analyzing data, a decision was made to have ODS assigned back to each department and 
utilizing the floor OD model to make sure calls and requests are responded to in a timely manner. 

Strategic Plan

The strategic plan includes 5 Focus areas: Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Belonging; Development and Growth of Engaged Workforce; 
Employment and Day Services; Health and Wellness; and Safe, Affordable, and Accessible Housing. NLACRC continues to create 
opportunities to meet goals for each of the focus areas.

1.  DEIB – conducts outreach to communities, provides informational sessions to community-based organizations; is available for 
consultations to support families and consumers; develops focus groups to get feedback from diverse communities; facilitates support 
groups in different languages; translates available presentations in Armenian, Tagalog, Farsi, and Spanish.
2.  Workforce – review of current training models for new and existing employees to provide tools that can be used during daily work 
activities. Creation of engagement activities to boost morale and to have professional growth opportunities available. 
3.  Employment – continue to engage in the community with potential employment opportunities for consumers to have more choices 
for work experience. 
4.  Wellness – activities available for staff to create life/work balance and to have ways to support a healthy work environment. 
5.  Housing – continue looking for options related to housing to have available for consumers that choose to live independently. 

Legislative Advocacy 
Empowerment & Training

NLACRC continues to participate in annual ARCA grassroots events to speak with legislators about the needs of our communities and 
how  legislation can support consumers and families through the assistance of the Legislative Educator Consultant and teams 
representing NLACRC have conducted visits to local legislators as well as staff members have participated in their sponsored events in 
the community.

43



Page 1 of 6 
 

DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES  

REGIONAL CENTER PURCHASE OF SERVICE PUBLIC MEETINGS SUMMARY, RECOMMENDATIONS 

AND PLAN TO PROMOTE EQUITY AND REDUCE DISPARITIES ANNUAL REPORT TEMPLATE  

As indicated in Welfare and Institutions (W&I) Code section 4519.5(g) and (i), regional centers are required to 

hold public meetings for community members within three months of posting annual purchase of service data 

on their websites. Regional centers submit an annual report to the Department of Developmental Services 

(Department) by May 31st. The Department reviews and provides feedback to the regional centers on the 

report, prior to its posting by August 31st. The following pages include the required components of the report. A 

list of questions is provided to assist regional centers when preparing the report in addition to the inclusion of 

regional center’s public meeting notes, public comments, presentation materials and a plan with 

recommendations for increasing equitable access in purchase of services and supports .  

Regional center name:  North Los Angeles County Regional Center 

Person filling out report:  Cristina Preuss 

Date of completion:  May 31, 2024 

PROPER MEETING COMMUNITY INCLUSION 

W&I Code section 4519.5 (g)”…each regional center shall meet with stakeholders (community members) in one 

or more public meetings regarding the (purchase of service) data… consider the language needs of the 

community and shall schedule the meetings at times and locations designed to result in a high turnout by the 

public and underserved communities.”  

1. How many meetings did your regional center conduct? 2 

 

2. Did your regional center hold at least one meeting by March 31st? Yes 

 

3. How were the meetings scheduled to accommodate community participation? Select all that apply.  

☐     Webinar (e.g., GoToMeeting, YouTube)  

☒     Virtual platform (e.g., Zoom)  

☐     In-person  

☐     Hybrid 

☐     Other 

If “Other” selected enter here. 
 

 

 

 

PROPER MEETING NOTIFICATION 

 

W&I Code section 4519.5(g)  

 

“…regional centers shall inform the department of the scheduling of those public meetings 30 days prior to the 

meeting. Notice of the meetings shall also be posted on the regional center’s internet website 30 days prior to 

the meeting and shall be sent to individual stakeholders and groups representing underserved communities in a 

timely manner.” 

 

4. Was the Department informed at least 30 days prior to ALL meetings? Yes 

 

5. How was the Department informed? OCO Email 

 

44



Page 2 of 6 
 

6. Were notices of ALL meetings held, posted on the regional center’s website 30 days prior to each 

meeting(s)? Yes 

 

7. Select the best option that represents when individual community members impacted by disparities and 

barriers to equitable access to services and supports were informed? 3 weeks' notice 

 

8. What outreach efforts were utilized to inform individual community members impacted by disparities and 

barriers to equitable access to services and supports of the meetings(s)? Select all that apply.  

☒     Newsletter/Eblast  

☒     POS meeting specific email  

☒     Public meeting 

☒     Social media  

☒     Community partners  

☒     Website (e.g., event page or calendar)  

☐     Blog post  

☐     Everbridge or another type of automated phone recording  

☐     Mail  

☐     Text  

☐     Phone call by regional center staff  

☐     Other 

If “Other” selected enter here. 
 

 

 

 

CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY APPROPRIATE 

W&I Code section 4519.5(g)  

“The regional center shall provide participants of these meetings with the data and any associated information 

related to improvements in the provision of developmental services to underserved communities and shall 

conduct a discussion of the data and the associated information in a manner that is culturally and linguistically 

appropriate for that community, including providing alternative communication services.” 

9. What languages were offered during the meeting(s)? Select all that apply. 

☒    English 

☒    Spanish  

☐    Mandarin  

☐    Cantonese 

☐    Hmong  

☐    Korean  

☐    Vietnamese  

☐    ASL  

☒    Other 

Armenian, Tagalog, and Farsi. 
  

 

10. Did the meeting(s) include any of the following? Select all that apply. 

☒     Meeting(s)held in several languages 

☒     Closed captioning provided 

45



Page 3 of 6 
 

☒     Materials were provided in several languages 

☒     Information was presented in plain language (i.e. easy to understand)  

☐     Other 

If “Other” selected enter here. 
 

 

 

 

11. Describe how the cultural and linguistic needs of the communities were considered.  

 

Based on the center’s demographics, it was determined to have interpretation available 

for the top 5 languages for our community: English, Spanish, Armenian, Farsi, and  

Tagalog.  The public meetings also had small breakout rooms with interpretations in the 

preferred language mentioned above.  As our Spanish speaking population is the 

largest, we had 2 breakout rooms to ensure space capacity.   

 

ACTIONS TO IMPROVE PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AND PARTICIPATION 

W&I Code section 4519.5(i)(1)(A)  

“Actions the regional center took to improve public attendance and participation at stakeholder meetings, 

including, but not limited to, attendance and participation by underserved communities.” 

12. Was the goal or purpose of the meeting communicated? If so, describe how? 

Yes, information about the purpose of the meeting was provided through the 

presentation and through mailing and advertisement on NLACRC’s website.  

 

 

13. What methods were used to provide an environment that allowed attendees to feel comfortable and 

interact with each other? Select all that apply.  

☒     Allowed for small group conversations  

☒     Introduced staff in attendance  

☒     Allowed attendees to introduce themselves  

☒     Provided chat rooms (e.g., zoom chat function)  

☒     Chat feature was enabled  

☒     Opportunity for public comment  

☒     Provided opportunities to ask questions  

☒     Other  

Offered additional surveys in different languages, which were made available 2 weeks before 
and after the public meetings.  

 

14. Based on attendance did you observe any of the following? Select all that apply.  

☒    Attendees engaged in public comment  

☐    Innovative ideas suggested by attendees 

☒    Diverse perspectives shared by attendees 

☒    Attendees requested additional explanation/clarification on the information shared  

☐    Other  

If “Other” selected enter here. 
 

 

15. Overall, how many individuals from the public attended the meeting(s)? Select best estimate.  

100-200 

46



Page 4 of 6 
 

 

16. What efforts did the regional center take to improve public attendance and participation, including any 

new strategies? Select all that apply.  

☒     Collaborated with community partners  

☒     Offered focus groups  

☒     Offered meetings in multiple languages  

☒     Offered multiple meeting opportunities  

☒     Outreach through group meetings  

☒     Outreach via flyers/public service announcements/social media  

☒     Provided translated materials  

☐     Shared via Everbridge  

☒     Offered meetings virtually  

☒     Offered meetings during non-business hours or on weekends  

☐     Not applicable 

☐     Other 

If “Other” selected enter here. 
 

 

17. Who were the meeting(s) attendees? Select all that apply.  

☒     Self-advocates  

☒     Parents/family members  

☒     Regional center staff  

☒     Board members  

☒     Community advocates  

☒     Community based organizations  

☒     Department staff 

☒     Other 

Service providers.   
 

 

18. List the names of the partner agencies, community partners, and community-based organizations that 

participated in the meeting(s).  

 

ICC, DOR, SCDD, FFRC, LVAC, OCRA, CHLA, and 24hr Homecare.  

 

COPIES OF MINUTES AND ATTENDEE COMMENTS 

W&I Code section 4519.5 (i)(1)(B)  

“Copies of minutes from the meeting and attendee comments” 

19. Does the regional center report include a copy of the meeting minutes (notes) and a copy of the raw 

attendee comments?  Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



Page 5 of 6 
 

 

20. Which of the following themes reflect what attendees expressed as important, challenges and barriers 

faced? Select as top concern, concern or not a concern for each.  

 
Top Concern Concern 

Not a 

Concern 

Regional center services satisfaction ☐     ☒     ☐     

Case management satisfaction ☒     ☐     ☐     

Lack of regional center knowledge/service options  

 

☒     ☐     ☐     

Lack of community trainings  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Concern with language and cultural competency  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Service coordinator/staff training concerns  

 

☐     ☒     ☐     

Caseload concerns  

 

☐     ☒     ☐     

Communication/outreach concerns 

 

☐     ☒     ☐     

Lack of regional center trust  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Unmet needs  

 

☐     ☒     ☐     

Service accessibility concerns  

 

☐     ☒     ☐     

Transportation issues  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Rates and vendorization concerns  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Vendor concerns  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Lack of community, regional center, and other community member 

collaboration  

 

☐     ☐     ☒     

Need for advocacy training and support 

 

☐              ☐              ☒             

    

21. Were there any additional topics or themes mentioned in the meeting(s) that are not listed in question 20? 

Please list and indicate if they were a top concern (mentioned by multiple people).  

 

N/A 
 

 

IDENTIFIED DISPARITIES IN THE POS DATA 

W&I Code section 4519.5 (i)(1)(C)  

“Whether the data…indicate a need to reduce disparities in the purchase of services among consumers in the 

regional center’s catchment area.” 

48



Page 6 of 6 
 

22. Did the regional center report data about number of instances when written copies of individual program 

plans (IPP) were provided at the request of consumers or their legal representatives more than 45 days for 

threshold languages and 60 days for non-threshold languages after request was made?       No 

 

23. Summarize the type of disparities that were identified and discussed (e.g., by race/ethnicity, primary 

language, residence, age, diagnosis, etc.) 

 

See Exhibit A of the attached report.    

 

 

REGIONAL CENTER’S RECOMMENDATIONS AND PLANS TO PROMOTE EQUITY AND REDUCE DISPARITIES  

W&I Code section 4519.5 (i)(1)(C)  

“…If the data do indicate that need, the regional center’s recommendations and plan to promote equity, and 

reduce disparities, in the purchase of services.” 

24. What other venues were utilized, in addition to holding the POS annual meetings, to gather information to 

develop the regional center’s recommendations and plan1  to promote equity and reduce disparities? 

Select all that apply.  

☒     Other regional center meetings  

☒     Feedback requested from support groups  

☒     Recommendations from focus groups  

☒     Surveys  

☐     Call for public input (e.g., social media, eblasts, website)  

☐     Other 

If “Other” selected enter here. 
 

 

25. Does the reginal center’s attached report include how the prior year’s recommendations and plan were 

implemented?  Yes 

REPORTS POSTED ON INTERNET WEBSITES 

W&I Code section 4519.5 (c)(1)(B)  

“…Commenting December 31, 2023, each regional center shall post its data uniformly with all other regional 

centers, using the same criteria, format, and organization.”  

26. Did the regional center post its data as provided by the Department on December 19, 2023? Yes 

W&I Code section 4519.5 (i)(1)(C)(2) 

“Each regional center and the department shall annually post the reports required by paragraph (1) 2on its 

website by August 31.”  

27. Did the regional center post on its website the report developed from public meetings and all its required 

elements pursuant to W&I Code section 4519.5(i)(C)(1)?    Yes 

 
1 Regional center to attach recommendations and plan. 
2 W&I Code section 4519.5(i)(C)(1) 

49



 North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Center Report for Executive Committee 

November 2024 
 

 
1. NLACRC Spotlight: 

 
a. The Center has completed all training sessions on Person-Centered 

Conversations and Person-Centered Outcomes.  
b. Additionally, training sessions have commenced on the Department of 

Developmental Services' (DDS) new person-centered, standardized Individual 
Program Plan (IPP) template, set to take effect on January 1, 2025.  

c. The Person-Centered Workgroups have developed user-friendly tools to 
support Client Service Coordinators (CSCs) in using DDS's new IPP template, 
crafting person-centered outcomes, and ensuring compliance with all statutory 
and DDS requirements. These resources will be distributed to units soon. 

d. The Lead Trainer team has expanded to seven members and is continuing to 
grow. Given the current volume of incoming CSCs, the team is focused on 
preparing CSCs to conduct IPP meetings and produce IPP reports. 

e. In other updates, the Center has launched the Vendor Portal, with a third of all 
vendors now registered. 

f.  Audio-visual updates have been completed in the Antelope Valley (AV), San 
Fernando Valley (SFV), and Santa Clarita Valley (SCV) conference rooms.  

 
2. Department Developmental Center Updates:  

 
a. Rate Reform Update: 

i. Information on the January 2025 rate reform implementation is being 
released through a series of directives. These directives offer regional 
centers and providers guidance on updated service descriptions, new 
qualification and billing requirements, and timelines for implementation.  

ii. DDS continues to host weekly office hours for regional centers to support 
rate reform initiatives.  

b. Quality Incentive Program (QIP) Update: 
i. Service providers are encouraged to participate in the one-time 

Employment Access and Employment Capacity quality incentives, 
extended through June 30, 2025. Eligibility details are available on the QIP 
webpage. 

c. Provider Directory: 
i. Providers who submit their records by November 29, 2024 are eligible for a 

one-time lump sum incentive payment.  
ii. For service providers included in rate reform, participation in the Provider 

Directory measure is the only way to earn up to a 10% quality incentive on 
the reimbursement rate from January 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026. 

 
 
 

50



 
 
 

3. Center Updates: 
 

A. Recruitment: 
 

a. Total # positions filled: 789 
i. Total # of positions authorized: 942 

b. November New Hires 
i. 1st cycle (11/4/2024): 9 

ii. 2nd cycle (11/18/2024): 10 (10 confirmed) 
 

B. Outreach: 
a. 10/19/24: All-Abilities Resource Fair 
i. NLACRC’s Diversity, Equity, Inclusion & Belonging (DEIB) team participated 

in the 11th Annual All-Abilities Resource Fair, hosted by California State 
University Northridge (CSUN) and Family Focus Resource Center (FFRC), 
providing information on NLACRC services and DEIB initiatives. The fair 
featured resources from over 70 community providers for all ages. 

b. 10/31/24: Black Infant Health 2024 Harvest Fest 
i. DEIB shared information on early intervention and NLACRC support 

services with the Antelope Valley community. This event strengthened 
partnerships with organizations such as the Department of Mental Health 
and local Black and African American support groups. 

 
c. 11/9/24: Harvesting Health Community Resource Fair 
i. DEIB engaged Spanish-speaking families and partnered with local clinics 

and medical providers to inform families and professionals about NLACRC 
services. 

 
d. 11/12/24: Regional Center Essentials Presentation to Department of 

Children & Family Services (DCSF) 
i. DEIB conducted informational sessions with DCFS staff and child 

social workers on NLACRC eligibility, services, and collaborative 
opportunities, supported by Transition Unit Supervisors and DCFS 
Liaisons for age-specific resources. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



 
 
 

C. Consumer Statistics:  
 

▪ Total served: 37,967  
▪ Early Start 5,134 
▪ Lanterman 30,045 
▪ Breakdown of three valleys: 
▪ AV 8,937 (Early Start, & Lanterman)  
▪ SCV 4,148 (Early start & Lanterman) 
▪ SFV 22,094 (Early start, & Lanterman) 
▪ Intake all 3 valley: 1,209 & Early start Intake: 375 
All other categories not captured in Early Start, Lanterman, and Intake, such as 
Provisional, Enhanced, Specialized, and other which total 1,204. 

 
 

4. Upcoming Disability Organization Events/Activities: 
 

a. State Council on Developmental Disabilities next council meeting – TBA 
b. Disability Rights California’s next board meeting - TBA 
c. Self Determination Local Advisory Meeting – TBA 

52



FY 2024-25 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Total Total
Executive Committee

Meeting Length Dark Dark Dark
Ana Quiles, Chair P P P 0 3.25
Sharmila Brunjes P P P 0 3.25
Leticia Garcia P P P 0 3.25
Brian Gatus P P P 0 3.25
Rocio Sigala P P P 0 3.25
Alma Rodriguez P P P 0 3.25
Andrew Ramirez Ab P P 1 2.00

Meeting Time 1.25 1.00 1.00
P = Present          Ab = Absent

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more 
committees on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on 
which he or she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to 
have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each 
Board member following each regularly-scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

Absences Hours

53


	12.B_attend.mtgs.FY2024-25.pdf
	Executive 

	07.C.1_NLACRC POS Annual Report FY 2023-24 05.31.2024 Final.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36




